
2021 Wind & Solar RFP – Q&A 
 

 

Posted 10/11/2021 

 

QUESTION #1:  Please send me the link for the Bidders Technical Conference. 

ANSWER:  A link to register for the event will be sent out the week of October 
18th.  Once registered, you will receive a link to the Webex event. The Conference 
is currently scheduled for November 3rd at 2pm Central time.  

 

QUESTION #2:  Why has PSO limited participation for the wind and solar RFPs to 
Projects that are in the 2017 SPP Queue? 

ANSWER:   For the both the Wind and Solar  RFPs, PSO requires that each Project 
must be active in SPP Queue Cluster 2017-002 or earlier. Projects in later queue 
clusters will not be able to participate in this RFP. Note that Section 5.2 of the 
Wind RFP and Section 5.4 of the Solar RFP requires that Proposal pricing include 
“costs associated with the transmission and interconnection facilities required for 
the Project, including system or network upgrades, as required by SPP for the 
Project to interconnect to SPP.” Without knowing these costs a bidder cannot 
provide a reliable bid. In addition, waiting on Projects to obtain these costs delays 
the RFP process. According to the SPP generation interconnection study schedule, 
the 2017-002 cluster is expected to make it through DISIS Phase 3 (Facilities 
Study) in July 2022. 

 

Posted 11/5/2021 

 

QUESTION #3:  Can we get a copy of the [Bidders Technical Conference] 
presentation? 

ANSWER:   The presentation materials from the Bidders Technical Conference are 
posted to the PSO RFP website. 
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QUESTION #4:  Are you accepting proposals for already-built projects or only 
development proposals? 

ANSWER:   PSO is only accepting bid proposals for new development projects.  

 

QUESTION #5:  How will the potential for short-term market purchases from 
conventional resources be evaluated in conjunction with this renewables RFP?  

ANSWER:   PSO will take that into consideration and discuss internally. 

 

QUESTION #6:  What is the reasoning for limiting the level of solar purchases before 
seeing bids given that the IRP seems to show that solar is expected to have lower 
cost, higher energy production and higher capacity credits than wind?  

ANSWER:   The Integrated Resource Plan is informing what PSO is looking for 
from a resource perspective. The preferred plan within the IRP is 1,350 MW of 
solar.  If there is a robust response of solar projects that are economically 
attractive, which may be positively impacted by proposed legislation changes, 
PSO may consider additional solar resources beyond the 1,350 MW.  

 

QUESTION #7:  How will congestion costs be evaluated through the RFP process?  

ANSWER:   As part of the bids evaluation, PSO will perform detailed market 
efficiency analysis utilizing the latest SPP ITP models. SPP ITP models are 
developed by SPP in collaboration with stakeholders and industry experts. The 
same models inform transmission investment that SPP plans to ensure a 
competitive market.  

This analysis will demonstrate the congestion forecast of each bid based on 
location, capacity factor and other information provided by the bidders. The 
congestion and loss values will be utilized to adjust the overall levelized cost of 
energy to account for congestion cost or value to which PSO customers will be 
exposed.  
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QUESTION #8:  Did the IRP look at potential reliability impacts and backup costs of 
renewables?  

ANSWER:   This question is a departure from the nature of the RFP initiative; 
however, this RFP is driven by the results of PSO’s Integrated Resource Plan 
(IRP).  Please refer to PSO’s 2021 IRP Plan that includes comprehensive modeling 
of possible future generation and load scenarios. 

 

QUESTION #9:  Will the Bidders Technical Conference recording be made publicly 
available?  

ANSWER:   A recording of the Conference will not be made publicly available, but 
PSO will post the presentation and answers to questions asked during the 
conference to its website. 

 

Posted 11/19/2021 

Questions #10-#15 were included with questions and statements that can be seen 
as exhibit A in the appendix.  

QUESTION #10:  What other types of experience would be relevant for a bidder to 
have that would satisfy the bid evaluation team? 

ANSWER:   This statement provides an opportunity for the Bidder to detail its 
credentials and explain its applicability to the spirit of the requirement.  Example 
projects may potentially exist outside of the four corners of a list of qualifiers that 
the Company is open to entertaining and evaluating for credibility, or potential 
refinement of a suite of commitment protections. 

 

QUESTION #11:  In the context of Section 9.1.10, what does the phrase “minimally 
acceptable” mean with respect to a bid response not meeting the eligibility and 
threshold requirements? 

ANSWER: The Proposal’s bid price is expected to be 1) for the Company’s 
acquisition of a turnkey Project as further described in Section 5 of the RFP, and 2) 
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based on the terms and conditions of the Form Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA).  
If a Bidder’s exceptions (§8.9) to the Form PSA are likely to shift significant risk or 
costs onto the Company, then the Bidder’s proposal will not be “minimally 
acceptable” and will fail this Eligibility & Threshold Requirement. PSO coordinates 
with the Independent Evaluator regarding proposal evaluation. 

 

QUESTION #12:  Can PSO provide an example of “minimally acceptable” exceptions 
to the PSA Form that the Company have accepted previously and would again if 
requested? 

ANSWER: Exceptions may deter a project from reaching safe commercial operation 
and/or adding value to PSO’s customers. Each bid project is unique and therefore 
presents unique circumstances, so each exception is considered with respect to its 
likely impact on the project. No example will be sufficiently representative of any 
exceptions the Company   might receive or accept given the unique circumstances 
of each potential bidder and negotiation. 

 

QUESTION #13:  If a bid response with “minimally acceptable” exceptions to the 
PSA Form meets the eligibility and threshold requirements, how would these 
exceptions impact its score among the non-price factors? 

ANSWER:   The exceptions provided from the Bidder to the Form PSA are ranked 
according to the risks and costs associated with each of the exceptions while 
considering potential impacts to negotiations and achieving a timely executed 
agreement.   Depending on the exceptions, the project would rank higher or lower 
than another project based on the other project’s exceptions to the PSA Form. 

 

QUESTION #14a:  Once PSO calculates its levelized net revenue requirements from 
the different responses, will the Company convert these dollar values into a point 
system with a maximum 90 points awarded to the most cost effective? 

ANSWER:   Yes 
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QUESTION #14b:  Will the remaining bids (other than the most cost effective) be 
scored as a percentage of how much costly the remaining bids are?  For example, 
a response that is 10 percent more costly would be awarded 81 points (i.e. 90% of 
90 points equals 81 points) and a response that is 50 percent more costly would be 
awarded 45 points (50% of 90 equals 45 points). 

ANSWER:   No 

 

QUESTION #14c: If not, what system does PSO have in mind to compare the 
levelized net revenue requirements of the bid responses on a 90 point scale? 

ANSWER:  The equation for a project’s price score is (1-((Project Levelized Net 
Revenue Requirement – Best Project Levelized Net Revenue Requirement) / 
$15))*90pts. The remaining bids will be scored via an indexing on a scale of 0-90 
points, with bids greater than $15/MWh higher than the most economical bid (90 
points) scoring 0 points. However, PSO retains the right to review and adjust the 
$15/MWh threshold based on the economics of the bids received.  

 

QUESTION #15:  Will PSO alter, adjust, or amend its RFP documents to allow 
purchased power agreements and/or bids that involve non-solar and non-wind 
resources to bid, including purchased power agreements for capacity and/or 
energy from existing natural gas facilities located in PSO’s service territory? 

ANSWER:   PSO does not currently intend to modify the RFP resource approach. 
However, it reserves the right to adjust.  

 

Posted 11/24/2021 

QUESTION #16:  The RFP requires the projects to be interconnected into the SPP 
Pool 2017-002 or earlier. Does this mean that projects that did not apply for 
interconnection prior to 2017 will be unable to apply?  

ANSWER:   The rationale for limiting the bids to those in DISIS-2017-002 (and 
earlier) is to ensure an informed and prudent regulatory filing where Facilities 
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Studies are scheduled to be completed and that information is incorporated into 
the financial analysis and final executed definitive agreements. The DISIS-2017-002 
queue cluster has a DISIS Phase 3 posting date of 7/27/2022. This date is important 
because a Facilities Study will be complete and a Project/Developer can proceed in 
executing a Generator Interconnection Agreement (“GIA”). The Facilities Study and 
GIA, will confirm deliverability, deliverability timing (interconnection facilities 
construction timing, network upgrade construction timing), interconnection 
facilities cost, and network upgrade cost allocation. The DISIS Phase 3 posting 
would align with the PSO’s projected timeline including the final Purchase Sale 
Agreement execution and regulatory filing. PSO is utilizing the SPP Queue Study 
Schedule that is posted at this link: 
(https://opsportal.spp.org/documents/studies/sppgistudyupdate_weekly.pdf). 

 

QUESTION #17:  [We] wanted to understand PSO's perspective about colocation 
and aggregation of multiple project sites into one proposal? If we have multiple 
25MW POIs, could we combine into one 50MW proposal? 

ANSWER:   The minimum project nameplate rating (§4.3) is 50 MW and 100 MW 
for solar and wind respectively. Project aggregations across multiple POIs will not 
be considered. Bidders are welcome to submit multiple projects as long as each 
project meets the minimum size. 

 

QUESTION #18:  The RFP says locations in Oklahoma are preferred, but projects in 
Arkansas, Louisiana, Texas, Kansas and Missouri will be considered. However, on 
the page from the link: https://www.psoklahoma.com/business/b2b/energy-
rfps/2021Solar, there is a statement as follows: "To qualify for consideration, Solar 
Projects must interconnect to the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) RTO and be located 
in Oklahoma," which contradicts the first. Please make it quite clear for me, as I am 
considering Texas. Thank you. 

ANSWER:  The website has been corrected to reflect that projects in Oklahoma are 
preferred, but projects in Arkansas, Louisiana, Texas, Kansas and Missouri will be 
considered. 
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Posted 12/3/2021 

QUESTION #19:  Will this RFP be multiyear or is it only for 2021?  

ANSWER:  PSO is seeking to obtain up to 1,350 megawatts (MW) of Solar Energy 
Resources and up to 2,800 MW of Wind Energy Resources via multiple purchase 
and sale agreements (PSA) for purchase of 100% equity interest in the project 
companies selected. Projects must be operational by December 15, 2024 or 
December 15, 2025. The bid submission window for this RFP is currently open. Final 
bid proposals are due 1/13/22.  

 

QUESTION #20:  Do projects have to have interconnection agreements prior to 
submitting bids? 

ANSWER:  Projects must have submitted a generator interconnection request to 
SPP and be active in SPP Queue Cluster 2017-002 or earlier. 

 

Posted 1/12/2022 

QUESTION #21:  Would potential bidders be granted a short extension to submit 
their proposal into the RFP?  

ANSWER:  PSO recognizes that COVID-19 is affecting logistics that may delay 
delivery times, so the company would be willing to grant a short extension for the 
physical submission of bid packages. However, bidders will be required to submit 
an electronic copy of both their executive summary and completed appendix A by 
the original due date listed within the RFP (1/13/22 at 4pm EST).  
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